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Chairman’s Statement F[FIHREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31st March, 2010, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$886,335,000
(2009: HKS$789,644,000), representing an increase of 12.2% as compared
with the corresponding period last year. Included in the amount of turnover
was HK$294,901,000 generated by the cosmetics business, representing a
significant increase of 70.2% (2009: HK$173,239,000) over the same period
last year. Turnover of the fashion business reached HK$591,434,000 (2009:
HK$616,405,000), representing a decrease of 4.1% as compared with the same
period in the previous year. The gross profit ratio of the Group as a whole
decreased from 59.7% for last year to 57.3% for the current year. This was
mainly due to the increase of cosmetics business sales with relatively lower
gross profit ratio. Profit for the year before tax without taking into account
of the special losses arising from dissolution of a subsidiary during the year
was HK$46,474,000 (2009: HK$13,409,000), representing a significant increase
of 246.6% over that of the corresponding period last year. During the year,
the Group closed down the production operations of a subsidiary located in
Dongguan and shifted its resources input to the self-owned plants in Shantou
for enhancing the effectiveness of overall production costs. This resulted in
the transfer of approximately HK$12,432,000 from the translation reserve
of such subsidiary to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 27 (revised) “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements”, that the profit for the year decreased to
HK$30,037,000 accordingly. During the year, the segment results of fashion
business recorded a profit of HK$25,026,000, representing a decrease of 4.7%
as compared with a profit of HK$26,249,000 for last year. Cosmetics business
continued to contribute profits to the Group and recorded a segment profit of
HK$16,201,000 during the year, representing a significant increase of 128.6%
over that of the corresponding period in last year, which was HK$7,088,000.
In overall, there was a significant increase in contribution of the cosmetics
business to the Group. Moreover, the increase in fair value of investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings amounted to HK$8,856,000 for the
year.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement F[FIREE

As of 31st March, 2010, turnover of the fashion business amounted to
HK$591,434,000 (2009: HK$616,405,000), representing a decrease of 4.1% over
the previous year, and accounting for 66.7% of the Group’s total turnover. As
for segment results, that of the fashion business amounted to HK$25,026,000,
representing a drop of 4.7% as compared with HK$26,249,000 of last year.

As of 31st March, 2010, the Group had altogether 72 outlets in Hong Kong and
Macau (2009: 70 outlets). During the period under review, turnover of the Hong
Kong and Macau market amounted to HK$339,453,000 (2009: HK$346,119,000),
representing a slightly decrease of 1.9% over last year and accounted for
57.4% of the total turnover of fashion business of the Group. The slowdown
in the growth rate of fashion retail business in Hong Kong and Macau was
primarily due to the dampened purchasing desire of the customers as a result
of the rage of human swine flu at the end of April 2009, which had adversely
affected the number of incoming tourists and the retail business, especially
on the sales from May to August, and resulted in a decrease in turnover of
Hong Kong and Macau fashion retail business market as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The slowdown has been gradually stabilized
since September 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement F[FIHREE

Turnover of the retail business in Taiwan for the year was HK$111,634,000 (2009:
HK$119,557,000), representing a decrease of 6.6% over the corresponding
period last year and amounted to 18.9% of the total turnover of fashion
business of the Group. As of 31st March, 2010, the Group had 55 outlets
in Taiwan (2009: 59 outlets). The economy of Taiwan remained weakened
in general during the year as proved by the frail consumption desire and
purchasing power of the customers there, which was the main factor underlying
the decrease in the operating profit.

During the year, the retail business in Singapore recorded a turnover of
HK$48,557,000 (2009: HK$44,529,000), representing an increase of 9.0% from
the corresponding period last year and accounted for 8.2% of the total turnover
of fashion business of the Group. As of 31st March, 2010, the Group had 17
outlets in Singapore (2009: 13 outlets).

During the period under review, the business in China market recorded a
turnover of HK$91,790,000 (2009: HK$106,200,000), representing a decrease
of 13.6% over the corresponding period last year and accounted for 15.5% of
the total turnover of fashion business of the Group. As of 31st March, 2010,
the number of Veeko and Wanko outlets in China was 109 (2009: 146 outlets).
For the financial year 2009, just when expanding the China market, the Group
opened a number of outlets that borne fixed rentals but brought unsatisfactory
benefits, hence, the Group decided to close down these loss-making outlets
during the year, such that the turnover went down as the number of
outlets decreased. Although there was the write off of one-off expenses or
expenditures which affected the results for the year, it has created a stronger
condition than ever for the overall business in China and has laid a more solid
foundation for future development, even though there was a significant net
decrease of 37 outlets as of the end of the year as compared with last year.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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As of 31st March, 2010, the Group had established 37 outlets (2009: 26 outlets)
under the brand of Colourmix, which were mainly situated in Hong Kong and
Macau. For the year, cosmetics retail business of the Group recorded a turnover
of HK$294,901,000 (2009: HK$173,239,000), representing a significant increase
of 70.2% over last year. The turnover of comparable outlets also increased by
approximately 12.2% over the corresponding period last year. As of 31st March,
2010, the cosmetics business recorded a segment profit of approximately
HK$16,201,000, which represented a significant increase of 128.6% when
compared with that of HK$7,088,000 for the same period last year, represented
a significant growth in this business.

In respect of fashion business, through the closing down of the production
plant in Dongguan and shifting its resources input to the self-owned plants
in Shantou during the year, the acquisition and consolidation was basically
completed and was able to enhance the overall efficiency of production costs
and may further reduce costs in the future in order to increase the gross profit
of fashion business. Regarding the outlet network expansion, the number
of outlets in Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan and Singapore will maintain
at an approximate level to the existing number. The highlights for future
development will be placed on China market while a stronger business in
China was created after the rectification over the past year. In the future, the
Group will focus on the re-opening of outlets without fixed rentals burden in
department stores and it is expected that there will be a significant increase
in the number of outlets in China and an increase in the contribution from the
business generated in China to the Group's profit. In all, during April and June
in 2010, the turnover of comparable outlets in Hong Kong and Macau recorded
a single-digit increase whereas the turnover of comparable outlets in China
recorded a double-digit increase. In the future, the management will deploy
more resources for the development of the retail market in China.
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Chairman’s Statement F[FIREE

The cosmetics business has been contributing to the Group’s profit
continuously since the financial year 2007/2008, and the contribution to the
Group's profit for the year even surged drastically by 128.6% to HK$16,201,000.
As at the end of year, the number of outlets reached 37 outlets. In the future,
the Group will continue to expand its retail network progressively according to
the pace of opening outlets as last year. Since the opening of influential outlets
in tourist attractions in Canton Road, Tsimshatsui and Causeway Place, etc. in
December 2009, Colourmix has enhanced its position and image gradually in
the market and become well known among tourists from Mainland China and
hence increased its popularity. Moreover, the Group will also keep on enriching
the product portfolio, increasing the variety of cosmetic products with exclusive
distributorship and trendy cosmetic products, and training employees to
provide quality and professional services. In addition, the Group also planned to
launch an online shopping service in the financial year 2011 in order to further
diversify its business. In the aggregate, the turnover of cosmetics business
during April and June 2010 increased by 103.2% over the corresponding period
last year, while the turnover of comparable outlets also recorded an increase
of 16.4%. The management is confident about the future development of the

cosmetics business.
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LIQUIDITY & FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group'’s working capital increased from HK$171,163,000 as at 31st March,
2009 to HK$192,753,000 for the year.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to HK$32,549,000 (2009: HK$30,230,000) and the outstanding bank borrowings
and overdraft amounted to HK$61,056,000 (2009: HK$62,585,000) whereas
the total borrowings was HK$61,981,000 (2009: HKS$63,740,000). The capital
expenditure for the year was HK$28,515,000 (2009: HK$62,038,000).

As at the balance sheet date, the current ratio was 2.59 (2009: 2.56) times and
the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.15 (2009: 0.16) which was calculated based
on the Group’s total borrowings of HK$61,981,000 (2009: HK$63,740,000) and
the total equity of HK$421,854,000 (2009: HK$386,632,000).

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$144,902,000 (2009: HK$150,641,000), of which HK$76,611,000 (2009:
HK$70,467,000) was utilised by the Group. The management believes that
existing financial resources will be sufficient to meet future expansion plans
and, if necessary, the Group will be able to obtain additional financing on
favorable terms.

Pledge of Assets

At the balance sheet date, the amount of assets pledged by the Group to
certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group was
HK$70,047,000 (2009: HK$62,008,000).
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Chairman’s Statement F[FIHREE

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases, mainly
in Euro and United States Dollar (2009: mainly Japanese Yen and United
States Dollar) which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
18% (2009: 26%) of purchases costs are in foreign currency for the year. The
management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risk by entering into forward contracts
should the need arises.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2010, the Company had provided guarantees of HK$158,408,000
(2009: HK$164,827,000) to certain banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of which HK$76,398,000 (2009:
HK$70,253,000) was utilised by the subsidiaries.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had 3,707 employees (2009: 4,223).
The Group mainly determines staff remuneration (including insurance and
medical benefits) in accordance with the industry’s practices. The Group
also implemented a reward scheme for its staff based on their individual
performances. In addition to their basic remuneration and welfare, some key
employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance
their loyalty to the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all the
employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest
gratitude to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their continuous support. | sincerely hope that all of you will continue to
contribute to the success of the Group.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2010

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Report EEEHEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2010.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2010 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 32 of the annual
report.

An interim dividend of HKO0.2 cent per share amounting to HK$3,690,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK0.6 cent per share to the shareholders
whose name appeared on the register of members on 9th September, 2010,
amounting to HK$11,069,000 in cash with a scrip option and the retention of
the remaining profit for the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent HK$28,515,000 on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment for the purpose of expanding the Group’s business.

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued at 31st March, 2010.
The revaluation resulted in a surplus of HK$5,607,000, of which HK$2,196,000
and HK$3,411,000 has been credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and property revaluation reserve respectively.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31st March, 2010.
The increase in fair value of HK$6,660,000 has been credited directly to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of this movement in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties of the Group is set out on page 100 of
the annual report.
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Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to its shareholders comprise of contributed surplus amounting to
HK$53,135,000 (2009: HKS$53,135,000) as at 31st March, 2010 provided that,
after distribution, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo
Mr. Yang Wei Tak
Mr. Yeung Wing Kay

In accordance with clause 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Mr. Yang Wei Tak retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Term of Office of Independent Non-executive Directors

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years, commencing on 1st April, 1999
which should be renewable for each term of three years until terminated by
either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors, Senior Management Biographies

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny, aged 53, is the chairman of the Group. He
established the Group in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and formulation of corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has
over 26 years of experience in the manufacturing and retail business. Mr. Cheng
was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong in November 2001.
He is the husband of Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 50, is the chief executive officer of the Group
responsible for the overall strategic planning as well as the Group’s
merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 23 years of experience in fashion design and
retail business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.

Mr. CHENG Chung Hoo, aged 73, is a non-executive director. Since 1975,
he has been a managing director of an international trading and property
development company. He has also been a managing director of a property
investment company over 18 years.

Mr. YANG Wei Tak, aged 79, is a non-executive director. He has over 40 years
of experience in international trading and has been a managing director of an
import and export company over 30 years.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 57, is a non-executive director. He is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) and has been a partner of Yeung & Cheuk, a
firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong for 17 years. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences.

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 41, is the financial controller of the Group and also
the secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in July 1996, Ms. Wong
worked in an international accounting firm for about four years. She holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year.
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Date of grant

“RBZEF-ATAH

18th November, 2003

“RENERAZA—H

21st September, 2004

ZREANENAR

16th August, 2006

“REAENTAH

16th August, 2006

“ZFLENANA

4th June, 2007

—ZZLEANANA

4th June, 2007

ZEZNEARTAH

18th June, 2008

ZEZNEARTAR

18th June, 2008

Fr b4 4
Vesting
period

ZEREET-ATAHE
“RRLET—ATLH
18th November, 2003
to 17th November, 2007

ZEENELAZA—H
ZEFN\EAAZHH
215t September, 2004
to 20th September, 2008

ZRERENTARE
ZEF)N\EARTLH
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2008

ZEERENATARE
ZE-FEAATLA
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2010

ZRTLENANAE
ZE-FEANZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2010

ZRFLEANNAZE
ZZ-CHEARZEH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2012

ZEFNEAATARZE
SRR
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2011

ZRFNEAATARZE
ZR-ZEAATEH
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2013
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the Group

and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2010:

REBRLE
WH—H
HRATH R 2Bt
A7 BE S T Exercise Balance
Exercisable price at
period per share 1.4.2009
ZZFLEF-ATAHE 016207 9,000,000
ZEZFNET-AT LR HK$0.1620
18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2009
ZRB)\ERAZT—HE 0255087 2,000,000
ZE-FEAAZTH HK$0.2550
21st September, 2008
to 20th September, 2010
ZRR)\ENATAEE 0.2052% 76 1,200,000
ZE-FENATEA HK$0.2052
16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2010
ZE-ZENATAHE 0.2052% 76 1,200,000
ZR-C"E)N\ATLH HK$0.2052
16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2012
ZE-BEAANAE 0.1860% 76 13,900,000
ZE-ZHERAZH HK$0.1860
4th June, 2010
to 3rd June, 2012
ZE-ZHEAANBE 0.1860% 76 13,900,000
ZE-NERAZH HK$0.1860
4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2014
ZBE——ERATNEE 0.2500% 76 500,000
ZER-ZHEAATEH HK$0.2500
18th June, 2011
to 17th June, 2013
ZE-ZEAATNEE 0.2500% 76 500,000
ZER-HLEAATEH HK$0.2500

18th June, 2013
to 17th June, 2015

A
#il
Granted
during
the year

T4 BE B
%%
Lapsed
during
the year

(9,000,000)

REZ—-%4
ZA=t—H
Wi AR A7 B8
Outstanding
at

31.3.2010

2,000,000

1,200,000

1,200,000

13,900,000

13,900,000

500,000

500,000
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Bl AH
Date of grant

ZF-FE-ARA

6th January, 2010

ZE-FE-JAH

6th January, 2010

ZEF-FE-ARA

6th January, 2010

ZE-FE-JAH

6th January, 2010

AR E B> W RAT A 2 5B AT
i A T 84T 2 B4 B8 9% 36,200,000
B> AR AR H OB AR A B OB AT AR

#12.0% °

AR E R EBE T —FE—ANH (B

Fr b4 4
Vesting
period

ZE-RE-HAHE
“F——F-HJLH
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2011

“E-FE-HAHE
ZR-CHE-ALA
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2012

“E-RE-HAHE
RN
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2013

“E-FE-HAHE
“EF-NE-HIH
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2014

B2 H ) B Z Wi 8 450,155 0 ©
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

17 5
Exercisable
period

ZEF—E-JARE
“F-NE-ALHA
6th January, 2011
to 5th January, 2014

ZR-ZHE-fINHE
Y S - B R
6th January, 2012
to 5th January, 2015

ZE-ZE-AAHE
ZE-NE-ALA
6th January, 2013
to 5th January, 2016

ZER-NE-AARE
“EF-tE-JLH
6th January, 2014
to 5th January, 2017

BRATH
Exercise
price

per share

015623 70
HK$0.1562

0.1562¥% 76
HK$0.1562

0.15623 G
HK$0.1562

0.1562% 76
HK$0.1562

REZZZNAE REZ—%4
MA—H A mEER  ZA=+—R
ZHik #il %% AR B
Balance Granted Lapsed Outstanding
at during during at
1.4.2009 the year the year 31.3.2010
- 700,000 - 700,000

- 700,000 - 700,000

- 800,000 - 800,000

- 800,000 - 800,000
42,200,000 3,000,000 (9,000,000) 36,200,000

At the date of this report, the total number of shares to be issued upon exercise

of the outstanding options is 36,200,000, representing approximately 2.0% of

the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this report.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 6th January,
2010, the date of grant, was HK$0.155.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and

As at 31st March, 2010, the interests of the directors and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

A BT
JB A 4y e
Pk 2 AT Percentage of
Hm e H the issued
5ty Number of issued share capital
HHEH Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
1§ B Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny AN 1,134,601,359 61.50%
Founder (Hf&t)
(Note)
WEHZR L+ Ms. Lam Yuk Sum fEatZ A 1,134,601,359 61.50%
Beneficiary of Trust (Hfat)
(Note)
[EEE XN
Beneficial owner 170,963,476 9.27%
1,305,564,835 70.77%
MRt : ¥ %$1,134,601,359/% i HiSilver  Note: These 1,134,601,359 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits

Crown Profits Limited ([Silver
Crown]) H2:#EH - Silver Crown
e 75 2 HE45 #E) Cheng Family
Trust M 2RESZEE NPTFEH » %2
HE 45 78 1 32 25 N\ 60 355 0 g8 S0 o A
BEHREHRL LMERIEEE -

B B SCRT e ER o Rl T F U A RER
A B 54 I o /) b o T4 A
et s > R REZH=ZA—H M
TRAR A ) #2 2 B 18 9 28 35240 i 47
B2 B M B AL 8k o BB HE AP A T 2
AR R 28 T 2 BUAE  HEH R
2 Tt e N O A A A ] % HC AT AT R
B (5 27 B B R A0 58 1588 2 R #)
RO B ~ A BB AR 5 AT A

Limited (“Silver Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held by the
trustee of the J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held
by certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2010, as required to be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the year are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed therein:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly; and

(ii) there were no other transactions which need to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with the conditions agreed with the Stock Exchange with respect
to the connected transactions, the independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the connected transactions set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements and in their opinion, these transactions entered into by the

Group were:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on arm'’s length basis, on normal commercial terms and in accordance

with the terms of the agreement governing such transactions; and

(iii)  fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned.
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Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
("Well Feel”)

HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC International”)

H

B

Silver CrownZ 2= %8 C 8547 A< H Well Feel
& H > [MiWell Feel JJHSBC International
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Substantial Shareholders

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and other substantial shareholders’
interests disclosed in the following table, at 31st March, 2010, the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO showed that the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.

4
Capacity

HAEHA A

Beneficial owner

el MR (M aE)
Interest of a controlled
corporation (note)

CEINCED

Trustee (note)

PR SEREH
Number of issued
ordinary shares held

1,134,601,359

1,134,601,359

1,134,601,359

Ao w BB AT

JBe A 43 b
Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

61.50%

61.50%

61.50%

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in turn
was a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was deemed to be

interested in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown was interested.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales for
the year respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had an interest in the share capital of any of the Group's
five largest suppliers.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




15 S i '

A 2 T AR AN R S PR B RS W > 3
$HE AR 52 A 4 ) 0 2B 35 B A 1) A M R
Jo B W o

B~ R R A 4 ] Y

AN o AR ) B AT fo BB 4 ) AR S S
A\~ B A AR A Y B T RS o

P <5 BOR

74 I A BN L T i SR S T
ZHOMIERE ZHB - GIEREDH
3T o

AATERZBEHHME S F2RA
K Z BB AT A R B R T b
Z T 5 At BUR AR R

A2 T EL R A — JEE e B T ) > fR S
HH LG EAREE Z SO - A B
B 2 A O A% £ B S A 28 o

JE S0 R A I

AAFARBRE-Z-ZEZA=Z+—H
IR RN —EAER R Z ARFERE -

it v 191 1% 3 IR

R EBRZMB 2 ®ERHFIEFN > O
U A A B S AR 32

1 B i

A4y TR B RO AR R | bR R Pk
%o DA TE ) o B3 BT & R AT &
A2 T A B

AR
E
B 8 S

FH > ZF-FELAT=H

Veeko

Directors’ Report EEEMEHE

anko

e

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

Events After the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occurring after the end of the reporting period are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2010
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Governance Report EH¥ERBRES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended
31st March, 2010.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) are applied and
implemented is explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

Corporate Governance Practices

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Company devotes to best practice on corporate governance,
and to comply to the extent practicable, with the CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March,
2010 except certain deviations from the code provisions, details of which will
be explained below.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate
and strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalized and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The
Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including the
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request
being made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any
significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five members. Among them,
two are executive directors and three are independent non-executive directors.

The executive directors, with their intimate knowledge of the business,
take on the primary responsibility for leadership of the Company whilst the
independent non-executive directors bring in independent judgment and
insights from a broader perspective to the Company’s business in terms of
strategy, business performance, resources and standards of conduct.

The Board comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny

(Chairman of the Board and member of the Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum

(Chief Executive Officer and member of the Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo

(Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Wei Tak

(member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yeung Wing Kay

(member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee)

A brief description of the background of each director is presented on page 13
of this annual report under the heading of “Directors’ Report”.
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The list of directors (by category) is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Information” in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications of the Company. Save that Mr. Cheng Chung
Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are husband and wife, there are no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive director in respect of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the Company considers all such
directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced
distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for the leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective
functioning of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely
manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible
for the day-to day management of the Company. She is responsible for
implementing the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies approved and
delegated by the Board with the assistance of the senior management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the Board and
the management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined and set
out in writing.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has not set up a nomination committee and the Board as a whole
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors and
monitoring the succession planning of directors.

To maintain high quality of the Board with a balance of skill and experience, the
Board identifies individuals who fulfill criteria of the Company. When assessing
the quality of the individual, the Board makes reference to his experience,
qualification, integrity and other relevant factors. No new director was
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board during the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for independent non-executive
director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The appointment of executive
director may be terminated by either party by giving three months’ prior
written notice.

Besides, there are also procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Company’s Articles”). Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and any new director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Mr. Yang Wei Tak shall retire at
the 2010 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant to
Article 108 of the Company’s Articles. The Board recommended the re-election
of these two retiring directors at the forthcoming 2010 AGM of the Company.
The Company’s circular, to be sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of the retiring directors standing for re-election.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Though no new directors has been appointed during the year ended 31st
March, 2010, newly appointed directors will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with developments in the legal
and regulatory regime and the business and market environments to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. A board meeting was held during the
year ended 31st March, 2010 at which all directors were briefed on the major
amendments to the Listing Rules effective from 1st January, 2009.
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Board and Committee Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing, considering and approving
the financial and operating performance, business development and prospects
of the Company. During the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Company held
a total of eleven Board meetings, four of which were regular meetings for
reviewing and approving the quarterly financial and operating performance,
the final results for the year ended 31st March, 2009 and interim results for
the six months ended 30th September, 2009; the other meetings were held to
consider other significant matters of the Company.

Attendance records of the Board meetings, the Remuneration Committee
meetings and the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

HR R &k BT
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HMEHT HHREEG
EHY Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
Executive Directors A
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny 11/11 2/2 N/A
Lam Yuk Sum A
11/1 2/2 N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Cheng Chung Hoo 4/11 2/2 2/2
Yang Wei Tak 3/1 1/2 2/2
Yeung Wing Kay 4/11 2/2 2/2

Schedules for annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting is sent to
all directors in advance. Notices of at least 14 days is given of a regular Board
meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are dispatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the related
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting. As there had been
delays in the finalization of the financial statements, board papers were sent
to the audit committee members less than 3 days before the meeting for
approving final results. The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to all directors
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

Board Committees

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference
approved by the Board and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities. All
the Board committees have clear written terms of reference, which are posted
on the Company’s website www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The duties and
work done by the foregoing two Board committees for the year ended 31st
March, 2010 are detailed below.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of the directors and members of senior management, such policy shall ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31st March, 2010, the Remuneration Committee has met
twice to review and discuss the remuneration policy for 2010, the remuneration
package and bonus arrangement of the executive directors and senior
management of the Company.

The attendance records are set out under “Board and Committee Meetings”
on page 24 of this report and the details of emolument of each director on a
named basis for the year ended 31st March, 2010 are set out on page 63 in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo, Mr. Yang Wei Tak and Mr. Yeung Wing
Kay, with one of whom possessing the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a former partner
of the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: (i) to serve as a focal point for
communication between directors and the external auditor; (ii) to review the
financial statements and reports of the Company and to consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, internal auditor or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (iii) to review the relationship with and the terms of appointment
of the external auditor and making the relevant recommendation to the
Board and to ensure continuing external auditor’s independence; and (iv) to
oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system to ensure that these systems are adequate and effective.
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There were two Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31st
March, 2010 and the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer were
invited to join the discussion of the meetings. The Audit Committee has
performed the following work during the year: (i) reviewing and commenting
on audited annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2009, unaudited
interim results for the half year ended 30th September, 2009 and the quarterly
results for the period ended 30th June, 2009 and 31st December, 2009; (ii)
reviewing the scope of audit work, auditor’s fee and terms of engagement and
recommending re-appointment of auditor for the year ended 31st March, 2010;
and (iii) reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group.

The attendance of individual members at the Audit Committee meetings is set
out under “Board and Committee Meetings” on page 23 of this report.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2010 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2010.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance
of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.
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Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2010 and ensure
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The management provides such explanation and information to the Board
so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the company put to the Board for approval.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 30 to 31.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their corresponding
remuneration are as follows:

Jike 85 JE oAt HEfT 2 A
Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable
T
HK$'000
Audit Service 1,731
Non-audit Services
- tax services 338
- operational and documentation review
of Macau Commercial Offshore Company 320
- other professional services (including review
on preliminary announcements and agreed
upon procedures in respect of connected party
transactions) 172
TOTAL 2,561

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets. The internal control
system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to
ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The senior management shall review and evaluate the control
process and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Both executive directors have conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31st March
2010. Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general public
on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim announcement
and other corporate communications.

The Board should endeavor to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings
to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Charimen of the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee and, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, shall be available to answer questions at shareholder meetings

The 2010 AGM will be held on 9th September, 2010. The notice of the AGM will
be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where information
on the Company’s structure, board of directors, announcements, financial
information and other information are posted.

Shareholder Rights

As one of the measure to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting
will be taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholders’ meeting. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be
explained during the proceedings of meetings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report BY ZH MK ES

TO THE MEMBERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 98, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2010 and of the Group's profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2010
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e
B A

el

B9 R A B RA

(s i

AN ~ Wil Bl 4R
BEWEAFHE LT CTFE)
AL R o Bt A BB OB R

A A

Wit i B i — R R A ) 2
Ji E T i
ikt — [ OB 24 ) 2l 4

Bt i i
FABL(BA3C) it A

A L i

Joft 2 i e A (B 2)
H AT AR (B H)

(e ) 88 o B4 M 7 A 2 2
FEAE BLIE £ £t

GES 1 a2
HHRINERS e 2 W S 2

ki — [ Y I 2 0 R S A
R ERS

X 8 N T OAN

AL 2T A

FREA

Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other income, gains and losses

Increase (decrease) in fair values
of investment properties

Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings

Finance costs

Profit before taxation and loss on
dissolution of a subsidiary
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary

Profit before taxation
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Surplus (deficit) on revaluation
of buildings

(Recognition) reversal of deferred tax

liability arising on revaluation of
buildings
Effect of change in tax rate
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Reclassification of translation reserve

transferred to profit or loss upon
dissolution of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share

it

Notes

30

12

lidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4RaZH A K

RE-R-BEZA =t L

2010 2009
T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
886,335 789,644
(378,429) (318,376)
507,906 471,268
(366,606) (324,618)
(113,371) (118,262)
11,658 1,165
6,660 (9,510)
2,196 (3,187)
(1,969) (3,447)
46,474 13,409
(12,432) =
34,042 13,409
(4,005) 4,607
30,037 18,016
3,411 (139)
(777) 122

- 43

(3,482) 3,112
12,432 -
11,584 3,138
41,621 21,154
Al WAl
HK1.628 cents HK0.998 cent

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #r& Bk N &

At 31st March, 2010 SR BEZAZ4—H

2010 2009
Mt T# T-#T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current Assets
Investment properties 13 38,650 31,990
Property, plant and equipment 14 140,679 138,326
Prepaid lease payments 15 15,151 15,576
Rental deposits paid 42,227 34,457
Deferred tax assets 16 10,103 12,283
246,810 232,632
Current Assets
Inventories 17 212,867 194,500
Trade and other receivables 18 41,711 36,831
Prepaid lease payments 15 433 440
Rental and utility deposits paid 24,938 18,327
Tax recoverable 1,470 712
Pledged bank deposit 19 1,000 1,000
Bank balances and cash 20 31,549 29,230
313,968 281,040
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 64,716 51,445
Rental deposits received 1,005 559
Secured bank borrowings
- due within one year 22 51,229 45,429
Secured bank overdrafts 20 26 6,440
Obligation under a finance lease
— due within one year 23 251 230
Tax payable 3,988 5,774
121,215 109,877
Net Current Assets 192,753 171,163
439,563 403,795
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 24 18,449 18,449
Reserves 403,405 368,183
421,854 386,632
Non-current Liabilities
Rental deposits received - 501
Secured bank borrowings
- due after one year 22 9,801 10,716
Obligation under a finance lease
- due after one year 23 674 925
Deferred tax liabilities 16 7,234 5,021
17,709 17,163
—339,563 e

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 98 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th July, 2010 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director

colourmix &




REZZNVELA—H

EfilT B

EfMTEEL
TR A

PSTIANET 2
B2

GRS 142

AR

REEBRTRA
TEdRIR A 2 DR
B2 A
A7 B i 3 17 2
A7 M O 0 o

g
B

- o
- REBEREZ CRITRN

/Nt

REBRNEZA=ZA—HR

“EBNENA—H

Tfily R
Efil TR
JEREBUE ALK
BEANER R 2

s
SRR P W B A 1 I 3
REEHAHERE

AR
AREFBRTRA
ﬁ§ﬁ$ﬁﬁ2u&%

Rk fefY
BRMZ R

i

EARE

it
REZ-FEZA=+—H

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the year ended 31st March, 2010

At 1st April, 2008

Deficit on revaluation of buildings

Reversal of deferred tax liability
arising on revaluation of buildings

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Effect of change in tax rate

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

Shares issued upon exercise of
share options

Transfer of reserve upon exercise
of share options

Transfer

Dividends
- paid
- share issued in lieu of

cash dividends

Sub-total

At 31st March, 2009 and
Tst April, 2009

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

Recognition of deferred tax liability
arising on revaluation of buildings

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Reclassification of translation reserve
transferred to profit or loss upon
dissolution of a subsidiary

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

Shares options lapsed

Transfer

Dividends paid

Sub-total

At 31st March, 2010

== N /)

Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity #R&#

RE=F-FE=AS R

E ﬁ n\un\

E)R

LS

o ik WL G
WA RGESE  Property HERBHE  WRIBHE e Share W FF A .
Share Share revaluation Translation Special Statutory  options  Retained fit
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total
T T T TEx Tk TEx FEx FEc TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
17,677 36,842 6,047 (11,122) 2,266 3,409 2,745 314,541 372,405
- - (139) - = = = = (139)
= = 122 = = = = = 122
- - - 3112 - - - - 3112
= = IE] = = = - = 43
- - - - - - - 18,016 18,016
- - 26 3,112 - - - 18,016 21,154
= = = - = = 560 - 560
55 836 - - - - - - 891
= 440 = - = = (440) = -
- - - - - 12 - (12) -
_ _ _ - - = - (8,378) (8,378)
717 8,105 - - - - - (8,822) -
172 9,381 - - - 12 120 (17,212) (6,927)
18,449 46,223 6,073 (8,010) 2,266 3421 2,865 315,345 386,632
- - 3411 - - - - - 341
- - (777) - - - = = (777)
- - - (3,482) - - - - (3/482)
- - - 12432 - - - - 12432
- - - - - - - 30,037 30,037
- - 2,634 8,950 - - - 30,037 41,621
- - - - - - 981 - 981
_ - - = = - (719) 719 =
_ - - = - 2,020 = (2,020) -
_ _ _ - - = - (7,380) (7,380)
- - - - - 2,020 262 (8,681) (6,399)
18,449 46,223 8,707 940 2,266 5,441 3127 336,701 421,854




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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The special reserve of the Group represents:

(a)

(b)

the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from a group
reorganisation in 1999; and

the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings Limited prior
to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for the acquisition.

The statutory reserves of the Group comprise:

(a)

(b)

anko

e

reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries and are
appropriated at directors’ discretion, which are complied with Articles of
Association of respective PRC subsidiaries; and

non-distributable reserves set aside by the Macau subsidiaries in
accordance with relevant statutory requirements.
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-BESH=1—H AR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation
Allowance for inventories
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary
(Increase) decrease in fair value of
investment properties
(Surplus) deficit on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Increase in inventories
(Increase) decrease in trade and

other receivables
Increase in rental and utility deposits paid
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) increase in rental deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax refunded (paid)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in prepaid lease payments
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

TEREMER

2010 2009
Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
34,042 13,409
(43) (104)
432 375
30,529 31,704
2,348 1,879
12,432 -
(6,660) 9,510
(2,196) 3,187
1,969 3,447
1,051 903
981 560
74,885 64,870
(23,317) (560)
(5,288) 15,784
(14,993) (3,872)
11,923 6,208
(55) 149
43,155 82,579
(2,799) (3,350)
185 (1,487)
40,541 77,742
(28,515) (60,252)
- (6,466)

800 387
43 104
(27,672) (66,227)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %

For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BE %
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Repayment of obligation under a finance lease
Interest paid on obligation under a finance lease
New bank loans raised

Import loans raised

Repayment of import loans

Proceeds from issues of shares

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

n‘/T\

IE@/)ILE%‘:Z

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

Representing by:
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

colourmix &

2010 2009
T TF#HT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(48,604) (17,626)
(7,380) (8,378)
(1,882) (3,379)
(230) (145)
(87) (68)
50,474 25,000
18,802 41,252
(15,787) (50,896)
- 891
(4,694) (13,349)
8,175 (1,834)
22,790 24,822
558 (198)
31,523 22,790
31,549 29,230
(26) (6,440)
31,523 22,790



For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS") 1 (Revised 2007)
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HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)
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HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)
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Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (“HKFRS”) 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
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HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
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HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
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Hong Kong (International Financial
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- Interpretation (“HK(IFRIC) - INT") 9
and HKAS 39 (Amendments)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

BE-ZBESH=1—H LR

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors consider the parent and
the ultimate holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

2.  Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”):

Presentation of Financial Statements

i # ik Z 251

Borrowing Costs

5 BB A

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
YR 4 A R R i R R A 2 AT

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

FOF S 2 )~ 3% I 4 ) 8 O 0 ) 2 AR R

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

i e A0 R

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
A B Ak T 2 e

Operating Segments

BE M

Embedded Derivatives

PR AT A TR

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

Customer Loyalty Programmes

% P RUE HH )

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
B A 2 Wk

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

WA ST AL E Z

Transfers of Assets from Customers
BEAREFRZEE

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008, except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual periods beginning or after 1st July, 2009

R\ AR A 2 T v T R R o > MR R RIUE B A — B DR
A BT TR A 3 2 A i 5 R A B S 5 5% 2 B AT A Bk Sb

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

T RBIUE M 2 v 5 R R 2 O > BT U A R AR 3958 SR80

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs that were directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset when they were incurred. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option
previously available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The
adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group changing its
accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing costs as part of the cost of
the qualifying asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting policy to
borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date
for capitalisation is on or after 1st April, 2009 in accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007).

As the revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively from 1st
April, 2009, this change in accounting policy has not resulted in restatement of
amounts reported in respect of prior accounting periods. The application of this
revised standard has no significant financial impact to the Group.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The adoption of HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 has resulted in a change to the Group’s
accounting policy for its customer loyalty programme. The Group's Membership
Scheme, operated for the benefit of its customers, falls within the scope of
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13. Under the Membership Scheme, customers purchasing in
the Group's retail shops exceeding certain amount could become members and
are entitled certain discounts on subsequent purchases. Prior to the adoption
of HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, the Group had accounted for the Membership Scheme by
recognising the full consideration from the sales as revenue and the discounts
are charged to profit or loss when the relevant subsequent purchases are made.
However, HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 requires such transactions to be accounted for as
‘multiple element revenue transactions’ and that the consideration received in
the initial sale transaction should be allocated between the sales amount and
the discount entitlements earned by the customer in that sale transaction.

This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and the
adoption of HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 has had no material financial effect on the result
and financial position of the Group for the current or prior periods.

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including revised
titles for the financial statements) and changes in the format and content of the
consolidated financial statements.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




W FH 5B AT R BB 6T 2
¥ I 5 i e T ([ o

S % ok e S0 ) (AF)

TR JH A 9 1 5 o o U SR 9% Sl S0 2 A
B B B E R R - TR
¥ BV 7 45 ¥ JU) S 8 5% 7 4 B et )
ES e 3

SR [ 3 40 47 LR R A L AR A A R
HE R Z R AT R ARAE AT Z A - B AT Bk
o

HKFRSs (Amendments)

T Wb 75 i M ) (T AR)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

T Wb 75 i M ) (T AR)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

T Wb 75 i M ) (T AR)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

T O T RSB 245% (RIEHT)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

F WG R A 275 (RAERT)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

T v 6wk QISR 325% (1B RT A%)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

T v 8wk e QISR 395% (1B RT A%)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

T v 75 4 Y ) S8 1 % (BT AR
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

T v 75 4 Y ) S8 1 % (BT AR

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

A 5 I o o B AR 258 (15T AR)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

T vk B 25 ot 4 B SR 3R (REHT)

HKFRS 9

7 U I 25 A 3 I SR 9%

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 (Amendment)

T (EBEMBERERREEEY)
— R REAE145% (IBRT AR)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

T (EBEMBERERREEEY)
— AR RRAE 1798

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19

T (EBEMBERERREEEY)
— iR AR 1998

Veeko Wanko

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r

For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BEZZ-FBEZA=1—HIRERE

B I BRRM

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
operating segments, nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of
measurement of segment results.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to HKFRSs 2008’
T S B 5 e A 1 R SR 5 9E 2 B BT AR (T % s B 5 o R B 2 OB (R F )\ 2 — 8B
Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
v B B A 2 SO (ZRFBHA)?
Improvements to HKFRSs 20103
WM BRI Z YO (SR —F4)3
Related Party Disclosures’
B 8y 2 3 58
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'
fo 5 e A ) B s A
Classification of Rights Issues®
B = 43 S50
Eligible Hedged Items’
HEHEWIEA"
Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters*
HIRR A F Z FHNE e
Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters®
BR85S R T SR 7 5% 9 5 Ll R DR 2 A R R A
Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions*
5 I DA B 4 45 G330 DL I 0 2 BE Bl 2 AE A 2 AR Bt
Business Combinations’
e S
Financial Instruments®
Sl T RS
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement’

T G B R Z AT 7

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

1A A IR I B4 A

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments®

VA AR T L 8 88 B 2 4 e
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 and 1st January,
2011, as appropriate.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010.
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011.

8  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st April,
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a
the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2009), HKAS 17 Leases has been
amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land. The amendments
will be effective for the Group’s accounting period beginning 1st April, 2010,
with earlier application permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and presented as
prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The amendments have removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on the general principles
set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The
application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s leasehold land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain properties, which are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in normal course
of business, net of discounts, returns and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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ficant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in the profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied property (including both
leasehold land and building elements) because its use changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the deemed cost of the property interest
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

Property, plant and equipment, including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction in progress are stated at cost, deemed cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
rental and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposit and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the impairment
loss directly.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other payables, rental
deposits received, secured bank borrowings, secured bank overdrafts and
obligation under a finance lease are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profit against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ficant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1st January, 2009, are added to cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Share options granted to employees of the group entities

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting period or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

As at 31st March, 2010, a deferred tax asset of approximately HK$4,548,000 and
HK$4,855,000 (2009: HK$6,988,000 and HK$4,742,000) in relation to unused
tax losses and unrealised profit on inventories have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position respectively. No deferred
tax has been recognised in respect of unused tax losses of HK$25,168,000
(2009: HK$20,501,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less or more than expected,
a material reversal or additional recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in future.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified based on their estimation and experience. As at 31st March,
2010, the carrying amount of inventories (net of allowances amounted to
HK$5,680,000 (2009: HK$3,332,000)) is HK$212,867,000 (2009: HK$194,500,000).
Management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. If the
conditions of inventories are deteriorated, or the market conditions worsen
significantly, additional allowances may be required.

5. Segment Information

(a) Operating segments

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with effect
from 1st April, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, the Chairman, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance. In contrast,
the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an
entity to identify two sets of segments (business and geographical)
using a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s operating segments
as compared with the primary operating segments determined in
accordance with HKAS 14. Nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the
basis of measurement of segment profit or loss.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are
Fashion and Cosmetics Products.
Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacture and sales of ladies fashion
Sales of cosmetics

Fashion -
Cosmetics -

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




(a)

WE R BEZA =L
5. Segment Information (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
5. EER(HE)

B I BRRME

B () (a) Operating segments (Continued)
A B L s 2 BRI T Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
Vg L&Y & 3 SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
HE _E—FE For the year ended 31st March, 2010
EA=ZA —HIEEE
I 5% Akt Vg Lok i HH
Fashion Cosmetics SegmentTotal Eliminations Consolidated
T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEH TURNOVER
HheE Sales of goods 591,434 294,901 886,335 - 886,335
SEHZ 8 Inter-segment sales 40 5 45 (45) =
591,474 294,906 886,380 (45) 886,335
AR5 Inter-segment sales
BT 55 % are charged at prevailing
G X market rates.
Vg ES SEGMENT RESULTS 25,026 16,201 41,227 41,227
HEWEATFEM  Increase in fair values of
7t investment properties 6,660
AR LR Surplus on revaluation of
MF B leasehold land and buildings 2,196
HABBA Other income 2,262
TRATE R Central administration costs (3,902)
A AR Finance costs (1,969)
BRBiRT R MB—M  Profit before taxation and loss
W A A 2 on dissolution of a subsidiary
e A T 4 ) 46,474
B — MM EAR  Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary
P (12,432)
BB Bl A Profit before taxation 34,042
FIABEBA S Income tax expense (4,005)
ARAE i Profit for the year 30,037
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Operating segments (Continued)

B K%M (%) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

#EZEENE For the year ended 31st March, 2009
EA=ZAt—HIEEE
IR 2 Al i oA i) B
Fashion Cosmetics Segment Total ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
T F#x T F#L F#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEH TURNOVER

B Sales of goods 616,405 173,239 789,644 - 789,644
AR e Inter-segment sales 118 3 121 (121) -
616,523 173,242 789,765 (121) 789,644

Vig P4 LYk Inter-segment sales
BT 5 % are charged at prevailing

HER market rates.
Vg ES SEGMENT RESULTS 26,249 7,088 33,337 33,337

WEMEATMEM  Decrease in fair values of

T investment properties (9,510)
HEGHE LR Deficit on revaluation of

B EHE leasehold land and buildings (3187)
HAA Other income 2,588
LT Central administration costs (6,372)
3% Finance costs (3447)
BRBLHG A Profit before taxation 13,409
FABLEEA Income tax credit 4,607
ARAE i Profit for the year 18,016

e o 2w B B 3 5 A 4R W
Z Bt BOR MR o o 8 A 16 45 o BB
S e 2z vam A > e I S A 4% 4 R A F
ElEZ &0 EMAMELORETZHE
SR BB I H A - P RATBOE A K
il AR~ R4 B BH 32w N B R —
W AR ZEHRTURE - %R &
VOBl R AP R B2 B 18 2
AT -

FH P 2 B 0 e SR N 3 48 9 B 40 R O
T oy AR Z G RE DL 4 TE B 98 B A R
Bl > ol e 250 B Z 43T -

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of changes in fair values
of investment properties, surplus or deficit on revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings, other income, central administration costs and finance costs,
income tax expense/credit and loss on dissolution of a subsidiary. This is the
measure reported to the Chairman for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

No analysis of segment asset and segment liability is presented as the chief
operating decision maker does not review such information for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Operating segments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
5. rEER(HE)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

3
Fashion
T
HK$'000

AL
Cosmetics

Tl
HK$'000

AEAEY
Segment Total

Tl
HK$'000

B I BRRME

Amounts included in the measurement of segment results:

|
Corporate

T
HK$'000

-3t
Consolidated

Tl
HK$'000

B ()

H At 43 & B

FrESHERRAEENZ &

e S 23 2010

TEERAE Allowance for inventories

22 W A E T Depreciation of property, plant
2 and equipment

HEEE - WERHEM  Loss on disposal of property,
ZH%K plant and equipment

“EE0E 2009

R Allowance for inventories

B~ R R Depreciation of property, plant
ZhE and equipment

HEESE - BUERHEM  Loss on disposal of property,
ZH% plant and equipment

Veeko

53
Fashion

Tl
HK$'000

L (#iq
Cosmetics

T
HK$'000

g
Segment Total

T
HK$'000

Al
Corporate

T
HK$'000

bty
Consolidated

T
HK$'000

anko

R
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BEZR-BEZA=1—HIR4ERE

5. rMER(4)

5. Segment Information (Continued)

b 7 R (b) Geographical information
A R EEMA G ) The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong, Macau,
- &8 3 mak &% 3 AR 3t Taiwan, Singapore and other regions of the People’s Republic of China
FE (T ) > H - 5k H (“PRC"). The revenue from external customers are detailed below:
k% P Z AR FERBIT ¢
2010 2009
T Tw0
HK$'000 HK$'000
Frvs W Hong Kong and Macau 633,951 518,755
= Taiwan 112,037 120,160
B Singapore 48,557 44,529
o 3R] 2 LAl [ Other regions of the PRC 91,790 106,200
886,335 789,644
e Y 7 T A [ ) ) 2 A T The Group’s information about its non-current assets by geographical
WHEETRFEREMT - locations of the assets are detailed below:
e B & A
Non-current assets
2010 2009
BRI T
HK$’000 HK$'000
vl SR Hong Kong and Macau 94,907 84,261
=3 ] Taiwan 3,651 5,344
EEyiliE) Singapore 4,088 3,758
o B 2 L il [ Other regions of the PRC 91,834 92,529
194,480 185,892
O R 8 T B g R N o A U Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial
HEEKEMTH - instruments.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
6. lEBRA

THIFIHEAE R,
TN AR 2B R Y
WATHE &
JHEZEU LA A AR BER Y
BATAE £
Al A R I

7. MBS (GEA)

BLIE BH 32 (REA) 45
AW B
ARAE
R4 R R A

At ) 3 e D8 A 5

IEHERLIE (Mfat16)
AR JE
R 5 2% A Bl oy 38

T ¥ ) 45 L T i A A7 B A R E BB vk A
EFLE16.5% (ZFFILE : 16.5%) 55 ©

NoBEBNENAZTAH > BWLY
GEB_FFNERAGARE > B
FEN/ ZZBABEER > SEF
BB RH17.5%H 1K £16.5%  H It » &
VB ) 25 B 75 He A AR JIE A T HE SRBE 6k A
16.5% (ZFFJLHE : 16 .5%) 5t & ©

Y A v M TR AR 2 B IE TG H R AR
] ¥ I 3 B R G5 -

Veeko

anko

e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %x

WER - BE=H = F LA

6. Finance Costs

Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Bank borrowings not wholly repayable

within five years
Obligation under a finance lease

7. Income Tax Expense (Credit)

The charge (credit) comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax:
Current year
Overprovision in prior years

Other jurisdictions Income Tax

Deferred tax (note 16):
Current year
Attributable to a change in tax rate

B I BHRRME

2010 2009
T#t T
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,882 3,043

- 336

87 68
1,969 3,447
2010 2009
Tt T
HK$'000 HK$’000
781 2,517

- (79)

781 2,438
(671) 361
110 2,799
3,059 (7,374)
836 (32)
4,005 (4,607)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated

assessable profit for the year.

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Revenue Bill
2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective
from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.
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For the year ended 31st March 2010
7.  FIFEBLHE X (GEA) (4)

W8 5558/99/M 5% 1 4 » ML 3% ¥ 4 i it
B Z W A ] (F8 % [58/99/MA ¥ 1) W
G SR PR FEBE R P BT AL) » BT IR &
58/99/MZ T 7 45 [ Y A - 24 W] 819 5 3
JE fih o

A4 I AT B R kM ML - il B
MR RFRARAR (THERME])
il B A PR AR (T B &L R D)
iy BEE R IR A R R (Tl BE R ) &
T i TR UL B BT T S IR A R F]
(T2 G R TG) T 8 B A 2 ) 4248 48 R
At AR G I A 3 AR B o T Uk AR
AR R TR S — e v R A S AR ([
BEEW -

M AEEERRERER F
T\ AE SRS A A AR o B %
R F-FE-HA-HBEZZ 2
A=A Bk 4 3
L p A o

1l B8 ) R A A KR 2 W] (Tl BE A D) &%
WHA R HE MG EEs 2=
F)RBREZZAMETA=Z+T—HLE
T8 1 B A 3 A B B
HBIR20% (ZFF/N\A : 18%)  PE A
3 A8 BE S TR BT ON % S R B R AR
HE -

REFRZEE=ZA+HAH > PEMRES
B = R A S5 6355 A A v I i 3% BT A4 B ik
(FHrpll) - R_RFBLEFZHAANH >
H I B B B A A S 35 1 2 R AN o
TR 4 5 ) B kLA 159 B i 3
P 45 B R B R 2 A ] LB R =
FENE - ZEFNF - ZFRE
R -—ER RSN REHRE
18% ~ 20% ~ 22% ~ 24% 5% 25% °

0 ) B M A ) R R B R 2
AT BEEEREER > HEBREK
F525% o AU T k) B LG AN RN o 2 %
27%BER[HMZ AT ZBERE BN
H—H—HEH27%8 £525% °

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %=4& B 53R R M=

RE-S-BE=H = —H L4

7. Income Tax Expense (Credit) (Continued)

Under Decree Law N0.58/99/M, a Macau company incorporated under that
Law (called “58/99/M company”) is exempted from Macau complementary tax
(Macau income tax) as long as the 58/99/M company does not sell its products
to a Macau resident company.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Jili5f & mal & Ry s
HMAF (“#B#E"), Shantou Yingko Fashion Company Limited (“Shantou
Yingko”), Shantou Yungao Fashion Company Limited (“Shantou Yungao”) and
Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau Cross Boarder Industrial Zone, Zhuhai) Company
Limited (“Zhuhai Meko”) are entitled to exemption from the PRC enterprise
income tax (“EIT”) for two years commencing from their first profit-making year
of operation and to 50% relief from the PRC EIT for the next three years (“Tax
Holidays").

# R, Shantou Yungao and Zhuhai Meko entered into their first profit-
making in 2008. Accordingly, they are subject to a 50% relief from PRC EIT from
1st January, 2010 to 31st December, 2012.

W SR 5 A PR W] (“WEEAI ") and Shantou Yingko (whose first profit-making
year was 2003) both are entitled to a preferential PRC EIT rate of 20% for the
twelve-month period ended 31st December, 2009 (2008: 18%). The PRC EIT
charges are arrived at after taking into account these tax incentives.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On
6th December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. For companies that were qualified under old
law or regulations for preferential PRC EIT of 15%, the tax rate was increased
progressively to 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in year 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012, respectively.

For companies that were still under the Tax Holidays period, the New Law and
Implementation Regulations allow the companies to continue to enjoy the Tax
Holidays and the tax rate will change to 25% afterwards. For companies that
were subject to tax rate of 27%, the New Law and Implementation Regulations
changed the tax rate from 27% to 25% from 1st January, 2008.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x
For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BE_R-BEZH=1—HIEEE

7. FIBBHEEZ(GIA) (%) 7. Income Tax Expense (Credit) (Continued)

B I BHRRME

The charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2010 2009
T#x T#T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 34,042 13,409
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 5,617 2,212
Effect of different tax rate applicable
to operations in other jurisdictions (1,897) (1,054)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 2,697 669
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes (17) (20)
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (183) (4,996)
Recognition of deferred tax assets
previously not recognised (331) (435)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 770 1,857
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability
resulting from a decrease in applicable
tax rate - (32)
Decrease in opening deferred tax asset
resulting from a decrease in applicable
tax rate 836 =
Tax effect of tax exemption granted
to operations in other jurisdictions (3,487) (2,729)
Overprovision in prior years - (79)
(4,607)

Tax charge (credit) for the year 4,005
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
8.  AAEE A

AAE A S ER (FEA)
THIKIH ¢

B T B
(L5 F W) -
I B 3L Ath A A1)
VA 2 B e 2 AE A
SRRk

PR Bk I i

A B P

MR AP Z

FRBA (M)

W ~ BESE Rk T8

VSV N
B - A B 2 R

M L (Has) 7R
LG O (645 W 4 e 2 32 HY )

Mk : MRBPEXZHEEBRARGER R
#E#2,348,000¥ 00 (ZF R4 ¢
1,879,000 JC) °

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits
Share based payments
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised
as expenses (Note)
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net exchange (gain) loss
Rental income, with negligible outgoings

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

BRE-B—BESA= R
8. Profit for the Year

2010 2009
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$’000
200,663 202,265
981 560
8,817 11,458
210,461 214,283
432 375
1,776 1,761
378,429 318,376
30,529 31,704
(43) (104)
1,051 903
(6,491) 3,251
(2,501) (2,555)

Note: Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included allowance for
inventories of HK$2,348,000 (2009: HK$1,879,000).

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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as follows:

2010

Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Total emoluments

2009

Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Total emoluments

and 20009.

anko

e

WER RS H IR
9. Directors’ Emoluments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %x

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
9. #WHME

CAY S T fr (R RIJULE « TifL) #
FHEAZHEWMT ¢

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2009:

B I BHRRME

five) directors were

Wi sk R
Mr.Cheng HE&H%t Mr.Cheng HmMEA HkElE
Chung Man,  Ms.Lam Chung  Mr.Yang Mr.Yeung L
Johnny  Yuk Sum Hoo WeiTak  Wing Kay Total
T#T T#x T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 100 80 100 280
1,560 660 - - - 2,220
12 12 - - - 24
1,572 672 100 80 100 2,524
WECEE WRFSEE
Mr.Cheng #E#HL+t Mr.Cheng HEfEEE  Hkikfkd
ChungMan,  Ms.Lam Chung  Mr.Yang  Mr. Yeung At
Johnny  Yuk Sum Hoo WeiTak  Wing Kay Total
T T#x T#x T T THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 100 80 100 280
1,560 660 = = = 2,220
12 12 - - - 24
1,572 672 100 80 100 2,524

colourmix &

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31st March, 2010




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
10. & B M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

RE-S-BE=H = —H L4

10. Employees’ Emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one director

(2009: one director) of the Company whose emoluments are included in the

disclosures in note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2009: four)

highest paid individuals were as follows:

2010 2009
BRI Twc
HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, share based payments
and other benefits 3,256 3,377
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 48 48
3,304 3,425

The emoluments of each of the above employees were less than HK$1,000,000

for both years.

2010 2009
T#n T#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2010 interim dividend of HKO0.2 cent
(2009: HKO.2 cent) per share 3,690 3,690
2009 final dividend of HK0.2 cent
(2009: 2008 final dividend of
HK0.9 cent) per share 3,690 13,510
7,380 17,200

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
11. BB (4H)

MERE_RRAE=ZA=Z+—HIRERE
W B S F R JUE RS 1 DR
KRB - %% R L O KL BB R
M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %x

WER - BE=H = F LA

B I BHRRME

11. Dividends (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, scrip dividends were offered in respect
of the 2008 final dividends. These scrip dividends were accepted by the majority
of shareholders as follows:

2010 2009 2009 2008
v 5] A a8 ] K
Interim Final Interim Final
T#t Tt Tt TF#on
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BB Dividends:
Bi& Cash 3,690 3,690 3,690 4,688
DLBAR B e Scrip alternative - = - 8,822
3,690 3,690 3,690 13,510

BEHRERUBERE BRI R
B8 Bo.6% Al » 7 311,069,000 JC > i
JBe B 7 WY 8 5 0 BUAR B B 0 o ME R AR R
WTE HE JE I RO 4R R g Bt s O W AR
H o

NGNS RN R R N E
BRI Ty AR AR A F A N AN A A
30,037,000% 70 (ZFF JUL4E 1 18,016,000
W0) T AR N OB AT AR A W) 3 A B n A
44 #1,844,886,976 /% (=T BRI :
1,805,590,525 8% ) % 3k #5144 -

st B34 7 2 ) W I 0 R % R AT
S PBERE o IR 2 i AR B RE AT AR
RO =R RERZFFEZF
A o

Veeko

anko

e

The 2010 final dividend of HK0.6 cent per share totalling HK$11,069,000 in
cash with a scrip option has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$30,037,000 (2009: HK$18,016,000) and on
the weighted average number of 1,844,886,976 (2009: 1,805,590,525) ordinary
shares of the Company in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not take into accounts

the outstanding share options because the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price of shares for both 2010 and 2009.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
13. BREWE

AP

WEZRZRN\ENA—H
MRS - W R
AP A TEAE T

RoFRZUE=ZH=1—H
RN APEE LT

HEF-FE=HA=1+—H

NBEE_RFARE=ZA=+—HIL4#
B> —HZEWEMBA B EES -
W B ik B R EHZA A A
18,500,000% 70 - MR E R —R4E=H
= — B RN R o

AEBMBEDER F-FE=ZA
Z=t—H-ZEFUE=A=1TH0 R
W B H 2 A IR G AR o BE A 4R T S
JH TR 0t 2 8 S S A S A 8 AR — K
S 3 A 397 A 1 % B 3 BT A R A R AT
ZAG AR EE B o S — OK T H A 00 A 1 R
SR A R B A Al A TSR B R o %
i 16 2 7% B 7 A 7 3 6 R L R 2 IR 38
MAEZTHZ G ERER - ZEWELA
AR E) O E A PR -

AC AR T 2 8% Yy S AL A W o 3 DL P )
R A o ASE B ik TR 4 3 AR
BREMERA AW ERMER > 9F
R A A K GHE > 3 4 8 % A
Bk o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

WESR A= = IR
13. Investment Properties

R
HK$'000

FAIR VALUE
At 1st April, 2008 60,000
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (18,500)
Decrease in fair value during the year (9,510)
At 31st March, 2009 31,990
Increase in fair value during the year 6,660
At 31st March, 2010 38,650

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, an investment property was
transferred to property, plant and equipment at fair value of HK$18,500,000 at
the date of transfer, upon the commencement of owner-occupation. No such
transfer was made during the year ended 31st March, 2010.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March, 2010, 31st
March, 2009 and the date of transfer have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited are members of
the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions. The change in fair value of these properties has been recognised in
the profit or loss.

The investment properties of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under medium-term operating leases. All of the Group’s property’s interests
held under operating leases to earn rental are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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COST OR VALUATION

At 1st April, 2008

Exchange realignment

Additions

Disposals

Reclassification

Transfer from investment
properties

Deficit arising on revaluation

At 31st March, 2009
Exchange realignment
Additions

Disposals

Surplus arising on revaluation

At 31st March, 2010

Comprising:
At cost
At valuation - 2010

DEPRECIATION

At 1t April, 2008
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Write back on revaluation

At 31st March, 2009
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Write back on revaluation

At 31st March, 2010

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st March, 2010

At 31st March, 2009

=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r

4= ] = A4

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

B I BRRME

ML
FRIR kT HERTEE  RERRE  KRREE  WAERXG it it
Leasehold
Construction landand  Leasehold Plantand Furniture and Office Motor

in progress buildings improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
T Tibr Tt Tt Tibr T Tibr Tt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,661 47,547 90,805 26,611 22318 12,440 3893 206,275
59 1,702 (3,074) 1,290 211) (301) 40 (495)

2,21 19481 28,065 5,266 4113 1,259 1,633 62,038
= = (11,418) (3,655) (1,097) (1,936) (1,145) (19.251)
(4,941) 4724 = 104 13 = = =

- 18,500 - - - - - 18,500
- (6,161) - - - - - (6,161)

= 85,793 104378 29616 25,236 11462 4421 260,906

- - 2242 - 167 198 16 2623
5,290 = 15,505 1,786 4,266 1,668 S 28515
- - (7.272) (7,019) (570) (1,686) ) (16,550)

- 2358 - - - - - 2358

5290 88,151 114,853 24383 29,099 11,642 4434 277852
5,290 - 114,853 24383 29,099 11,642 4,434 189,701

= 88,151 = = - = = 88,151
5290 88,151 114,853 24383 29,099 11,642 4434 271,852

- - 69,786 16,014 15,646 9442 3203 1410
S 8 (2779) 79% (208) (279) B (2439)

- 2827 20,032 4,268 2,655 1,356 566 31,704
- - (10,515) (3,581) (800) (1,920) (1,145) (17,961)
- (2835) - - - - - (2835

- - 76,524 17497 17,293 8,599 2,667 122,580

- - 1,712 - 128 157 15 2,012

- 3,249 17452 4849 3,025 1328 626 30,529
- - (5,886) (6,986) n) (1,554) - (14,699)
- (3,249) - - - - - (3,249)

- - 89,802 15,360 2,173 8,530 3308 137173

5,290 88,151 25,051 9,023 8,926 3,112 1126 140,679

- 85,793 27,854 12,119 7,943 2863 1,754 138,326
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements R3S B # 3%k Mz
For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BER-FE=HA=1—HI4EH
14, ¥ - B R (A7)

VWb MERZHEEBEYUEAE  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

DL TR R straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
LR Aot e iy AL TR R B 47380

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of lease

LB M T 20% s %A B4 3] (DA 3 4 48 )

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter
e B M 4%

Plant and machinery 25%

CIYE S

Furniture and fixtures 20%

b YN

Office equipment 33"/3%

U

Motor vehicles 20%

P BRI E R 2ME L The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings held under medium-term

B M 22 MR L leases shown above comprises:
2010 2009
T# T#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ALR ¢ Situated:
s In Hong Kong 28,572 27,134
HWIEHH Outside Hong Kong 59,579 58,659

88,151 85,793

AEMGME L RETR R FFE  The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued at 31st March,
EAZ+FHEEZRFAEZAZST— 2010 and 31st March, 2009 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
H p 8 o 3 R Al A SR — KPS Limited, independent professional valuers, on an open market value basis.

L B B 3 P A KR A ) 4 2 B i AP

HEATAGAE -

HWHEZ IR H1,126,0008 7€ ( ~ZZJL  The net book value of motor vehicles of HK$1,126,000 (2009: HK$1,754,000)
4 :1,754,000%0) B HMEMERA  includes an amount of HK$1,001,000 (2009: HK$1,385,000) in respect of assets
Z & Z 41,000,000 L ( ZFF N held under a finance lease.

4£ 11,385,000 7C) ©

i AL B 4 b B A 0 MO AT A > IR If leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they would have been
Bhu R T EHKBERERAEZRR  included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost less
#t 3 #576,695,000% 7G ( = B B L4 accumulated depreciation of HK$76,695,000 (2009: HK$78,970,000).
78,970,0009 70 ) wH A Db 5 5% A B B Bk -
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15. Prepaid Lease Payments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
15. FEAT A B3I

B I BRRM

AR Z FEAT R IH A The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
EWHE LM - Leasehold land in Hong Kong:
e U A Medium-term lease
ST AME L Leasehold land outside Hong Kong:
rh AL Medium-term lease
2RI E Z 04 Analysed for reporting purpose as:
TEE E Current asset
I B & Non-current asset

16. EEEFIIE

30 B IR B A AR R 2 R

16. Deferred Taxation

2010 2009
Tt TH#T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
3,328 3,416
12,256 12,600
15,584 16,016
433 440
15,151 15,576
15,584 16,016

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

BERIE G B (B8 R B E) - movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:
BLRTE RS
ZEEER
Temporary REBE R
H¥% difference A Unrealised
Revaluation of from tax Tax profit on At
properties  depreciation losses inventories Total
T T SR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEH The Group
REFFNENA—H At 1st April, 2008 (7,571) 1,564 2,289 3,727 9
R (F1%) 5 A (Charge) credit to profit or loss 2,093 (893) 4,946 1,228 7374
TARER H A A Credit to equity 122 = = - 122
8 b 2 Exchange realignment 37) (34) (247) = (318)
BREHZ S Effect of change in tax rate
- RESHEA - credit (charge) to
(F1%) profit or loss 343 (98) - (213) 32
— PHER R A - credit to equity 43 - - - 43
REFFNEZA=F—H At 31st March, 2009 (5,007) 539 6,988 4,742 7,262
R (Charge) credit to
(3132) &t A profit or loss (1,436) 147 (2,112) 342 (3,059)
RHERS P F % Charge to equity (777) = = = (777)
o 30, 8 Exchange realignment - = 279 - 279
PR 8 Effect of change in tax rate
— R A - charge to profit or loss = = (607) (229) (836)
RZF-FE=A=+—H At31st March, 2010 (7,220) 686 4,548 4,855 2,869
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16. VEREBLIH (4H)
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B HE 8 R 2 ¥ A 1 1% AR B P B B 48 A
50,747,000% 7C ( ZF FJL4F : 52,099,000
W ot) o A4 [ Bt 25,579,000% 56 ( =
FRIJUAE 31,598,000 JC) Z Bl IH & 17
THlE % 208 A0 0 T O E o bR R BB BURE R 2K
it R 2R PR > W 0k S 0 AR R 1 R B B
JH Ji5 45125,168,0009% G ( Z R B JL4E ¢«
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A BT R 2 25 4 #531,424,000% 08 (ZF
FJU4E £ 18,830,000 76) > H R A 4
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16. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position presentation,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2010 2009

T TF¥I0

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deferred tax assets 10,103 12,283
Deferred tax liabilities (7,234) (5,021)
2,869 7,262

At 31st March, 2010, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$50,747,000 (2009:
HK$52,099,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$25,579,000 (2009: HK$31,598,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of HK$25,168,000 (2009: HK$20,501,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$7,237,000 (2009: HK$280,000) that will expire in 2013 to 2014
(2009: 2013). Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries generated after 1st January, 2008
amounting to HK$31,424,000 (2009: HK$18,830,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

B I BRRME

18. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables
Other receivables

2010 2009
R LN Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
13,530 9,768
21,386 26,752
177,951 157,980
212,867 194,500
2010 2009
BRI T¥I0
HK$’000 HK$'000
31,769 27,705
9,942 9,126
41,711 36,831

Total trade and other receivables

The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from sales counters

and an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its wholesale customers. The

following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date:

2010 2009

T#t T#T

HK$'000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 16,641 19,724
- 60 days 5,438 7,127

- 90 days 2,716 174
Over 90 days 6,974 680
31,769 27,705
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18. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit record
and define credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to customers with
a satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed regularly. At the end of the reporting period, 89% (2009: 97%) of
the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. In the opinion of
directors, the trade receivables are of good credit quality and the debtors did
not have any default payment history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$3,353,000 (2009: HK$854,000) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

2010 2009

T Tt

HK$’000 HK$'000

61-90 days 1,783 174

91-120 days 1,570 680
Total

3,353 854

19. Pledged Bank Deposit

The amount represents deposit pledged to a bank to secure general banking
facilities of the Group. The deposit was pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings and was therefore classified as a current asset. The deposit carries
fixed interest rate of 0.01% (2009: 1.54%) per annum.
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20. Bank Balances and Cash/Secured Bank Overdrafts

B I BRRME

The Group's bank deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposits rates
ranging from 0.001% to 0.360% (2009: 0.001% to 1.54%) per annum and have
an original maturity of three months or less.

The secured bank overdrafts carry effective interest rate ranged from 5.25% to
6.50% (2009: 5.25% to 6.25%) per annum.

21. Trade and Other Payables

At 31st March, 2010, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were
trade payables of HK$22,723,000 (2009: HK$10,529,000). Details of the aged
analysis of trade payables are as follows:

2010 2009

Tt T#T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 30 days 13,897 6,731
31 - 60 days 2,569 1,905
61 - 90 days 3,305 843
Over 90 days 2,952 1,050
22,723 10,529

The amount of the Group's trade and other payables denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

DA R GHE PLE i wHE DLk 76 i
Denominated in
RMB usD EUR
T#xT T#T T#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31st March, 2010 420 - 570
At 31st March, 2009 429 406 66
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22. Secured Bank Borrowings

Bank loans
Import loans

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

The maturity of secured bank borrowings is as follows:

Carrying amount repayable:

Within one year

More than one year but not exceeding
two years

More than two years but not exceeding
three years

More than three years but not exceeding
four years

More than four years but not exceeding
five years

More than five years

Less: Amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities

2010 2009
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$’000
56,347 54,476
4,683 1,669
61,030 56,145
2010 2009
Ti#t Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
51,229 45,429
3,983 2,831
2,391 2,276
2,278 2,219
1,149 2,252
- 1,138
61,030 56,145
(51,229) (45,429)
9,801 10,716

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Group has floating rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging from 1.12% to 6.00%
(2009: 1.15% to 6.24%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

DA EHA PABK 76 s HA
Denominated in
usD EUR
T TW#oT
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31st March, 2010 4,148 279
At 31st March, 2009 - _

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 27).

23. Obligation under a Finance Lease

I AL 5 kO 2 B
BIGH Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2010 2009 2010 2009
TH#x TH#L T T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Amounts payable under
a finance lease:
Within one year 318 318 251 230
In more than one year but
not more than two years 318 318 273 251
In more than two years but
not more than five years 426 743 401 674
1,062 1,379 925 1,155
Less: future finance charges (137) (224) - -
Present value of lease obligation 925 1,155 925 1,155
Less: Amount due for settlement
within one year (shown
under current liabilities) (251) (230)
Amount due for settlement
after one year 674 925

SR [ DLk 2 A 0% O SO — R
LI A7 o 7l AR B R 8 T 2 A0 B A R
O T % 6 KR 3 o TR R g 4F

8.29% (ZFEFJLA: : 8.29%) °
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The Group leased a motor vehicle under a finance lease. The lease term is 5
years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under a finance lease is fixed at
contract date. The effective interest rate is 8.29% (2009: 8.29%) per annum.
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24. Share Capital

BB A
Number of fE
ordinary shares Value
T#T
HK$'000

Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2008, 31st March,
2009 and 2010
10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st April, 2008 1,767,663,602 17,677
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (note 1) 5,500,000 55
Issue of shares in lieu of cash
dividends (note 2) 71,723,374 717
At 31st March, 2009 and 2010 1,844,886,976 18,449
Notes:
1. During the year ended 31st March, 2009, 5,500,000 share options were

exercised at HK$0.162 per share, resulting in issue of a total of 5,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

2. On 15th October, 2008, the Company issued and allotted a total of
71,723,374 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.123, in lieu of cash
for the 2008 final dividend.

The shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in all respects.
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25. Major Non-cash Transactions

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Group entered into a finance lease
in respect of the acquisition of a motor vehicle with a total capital value at the
inception of the lease of HK$1,300,000.

On 15th October, 2008, the Company issued and allotted a total of 71,723,374
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.123, in lieu of cash for the 2008 final
dividend.

26. Operating Leases

During the year, the Group made rental payments for buildings under operating
leases as follows:

2010 2009

T#t T#c

HK$’000 HK$’000

Minimum lease payments 202,633 175,214
Contingent rental payments 10,222 12,914
212,855 188,128

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

2010 2009

T#t T#T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year 212,015 172,967
In the second to fifth year inclusive 186,636 165,247
398,651 338,214

In addition to these commitments, the Group may pay additional rental
expenses in respect of certain premises which are dependent upon the level of
sales achieved by particular outlets.

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of

its retail outlets and office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of three years. Certain lease contracts are with contingent rental arrangements.
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26. Operating Leases (Continued)

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,501,000 (2009:
HK$2,555,000). The properties generated rental yields of 6% (2009: 8%) on an
ongoing basis. All of the properties held have committed tenants for one year
to two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease payments:

2010 2009

T#t R

HK$'000 HK$’'000

Within one year 894 2,098
In the second to fifth year inclusive 15 757

9209 2,855

27. Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the
Group to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group:

2010 2009

T#n R

HK$'000 HK$'000

Investment properties 38,650 31,990
Prepaid lease payments 2,969 3,048
Leasehold land and buildings 27,428 25,970
Short term bank deposit 1,000 1,000
70,047 62,008

28. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 17th September, 2003, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
All directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors of the Company, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided
that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in
issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme or
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares of
the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by
the Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date on which the letter containing the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKS$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise
of the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer. The
subscription price will be established by the board of directors of the Company
at the time the option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth
anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.
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Date of grant

ZZZ=ET—ATAB
18th November, 2003
ZZENERAZt—H

21st September, 2004

ZEEREATAH

16th August, 2006

“EEREAATAR
16th August, 2006
“EZRLEAANA
4th June, 2007

“ERLEAANA

4th June, 2007

Z“EFNERATIR

18th June, 2008

“EFNEARTAR

18th June, 2008

T
Vesting period

“RZEET-ATN\BE
“FFLET-ATLH
18th November, 2003
to 17th November, 2007

“ERNEAAC-HE
“ERNEAAZHH
21st September, 2004
to 20th September, 2008

“EBAENTARE
“EFR\EAATLH
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2008

“EERENITARE
“Z-FE\ATER
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2010

ZZFLEANNAR
“Z-FENAZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2010

ZEFLEANAR
ZR-CHEANAZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2012

ZRRNEARTINRE
ZR—EXATLH
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2011

ZRRNEARTARR
ZZ-ZENATLH
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2013

28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of options granted under the Scheme held

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

RE_R-BE=J =4I

by employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

During the year ended 31st March, 2010:

frBE A

Exercisable period

“ZFLET-ATARE
“ZENET-ATLH
18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2009

“ER\EAACARE
“F- A
21st September, 2008
to 20th September, 2010

“ERNE)\IAEE
“F-REN\ATEH
16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2010

i S ViR VYK
ZF-ZEARHRH
16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2012

ZZ-BEAANAR
ZF-CHEANAZH
4th June, 2010
to 3rd June, 2012

“Z-CHEARNEER
ZR-mEAAZR
4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2014

ZR—HARTNHE
ZR-ZENATLH
18th June, 2011
to 17th June, 2013

ZR-ZEARATARR
ZZ-HEANATLH
18th June, 2013
to 17th June, 2015

TR

Exercise
price
per share

0.16207C
HK$0.1620

0.255037C
HK$0.2550

0.20528 78
HK$0.2052

0.2052i7C
HKS0.2052

0.1860%TC
HK$0.1860

0.1860% T
HKS0.1860

0.2500% 18
HKS0.2500

0.2500% 18
HK$0.2500

REBENA
MA—H
2Btk
Balance

at

1.4.2009

9,000,000

2,000,000

1,200,000

1,200,000

13,900,000

13,900,000

500,000

500,000

RAEER
£
Granted

during
the year

RN
¥
Lapsed
during
the year

(9,000,000)

RZZ-%E
e
WAL
Outstanding
at

31.3.2010

2,000,000

1,200,000

1,200,000

13,900,000

13,900,000

500,000

500,000

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




For the year ended 31st March, 2010

28. i JB B EH B (A7)

GEiL ]
Date of grant

“F-FE-ARH

6th January, 2010

ZF-FE-ARH

6th January, 2010

“E-RE-ANA

6th January, 2010

ZE-FE-INR

6th January, 2010

WRELAfTHE
Exercisable at
the end of the year

L ST
Weighted average
exercise price

A T A ACEE BE R 254 BE A I 4 1) B

2t g I

Veeko

TrbEi
Vesting period

“F-RE-AARE
“F—F-5A
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2011

“E-FE-ANEE
“F-THE-J4A
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2012

“E-RE-INHE
“F-ZE-ARA
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2013

“Z-FE-ANEE
“Z-NE—-ARH
6th January, 2010
to 5th January, 2014

wE_2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

frERR

Exercisable period

“EE-ANEE
“Z-WE-ARA
6th January, 2011
to S5th January, 2014

“E-TE-IRRE
“Z-14%5-A%H
6th January, 2012
to 5th January, 2015

“Z-ZE-fINEE
“F-NE-ALH
6th January, 2013
to 5th January, 2016

“Z-NE—-AAHE
“Z—-tE-HLA
6th January, 2014
to 5th January, 2017

A

Exercise
price
per share

0.156237C
HK$0.1562

0.1562% 8
HK$0.1562

0.15628C
HK$0.1562

0.1562% 18
HK$0.1562

B I BRRME

REZFAE I e 23
MA—H KN REER  ZA=1-B
kit #h b3 W AT
Balance Granted Lapsed  Outstanding
at during during at
1.4.2009 the year the year 31.3.2010
= 700,000 = 700,000

- 700,000 - 700,000

- 800,000 - 800,000

- 800,000 = 800,000
42,200,000 3,000,000 (9,000,000) 36,200,000
3,200,000

0.187 0.1562 0.1620 0.1904

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years.

Wanko
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Ji Jb i Wt 2 (A7)

MERE_ZRAE=ZA=Z+—HILEE

w

KHAM
Date of grant

ZREEE-ATA
18th November, 2003
ZZENERAZ—H

21st September, 2004

ZEFAENAAH

16th August, 2006

“ZENENATAH

16th August, 2006

“EFUERANA

4th June, 2007

“ZFUEAANA

4th June, 2007

“EFNEARTAR

18th June, 2008

“EFNERATR

18th June, 2008

WRERTE
Exercisable at
the end of the year

L SREL LG
Weighted average
exercise price

Wt -
R -

TrbERis A
Vesting period

ZRREET—ATA\RE
“ZRLET-ALH
18th November, 2003
to 17th November, 2007

“ERNEAACY ~HE

“ERNELAZAH
21st September, 2004
to 20th September, 2008

“EBAENMTANE
“Z2F)\ENATLH
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2008

“EENENATANE
“Z-REN\ATEA
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2010

ZRZZLEAANAE
“F-FEAAZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2010

ZEZLEAANAE
ZZ-CHEARZR
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2012

ZRRN\EARTARER
“F—HAR+tH
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2011

ZEZZNERAATINRE
“Z-EEAATLR
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2013

Sl B R P 47 PN T 0 L O TG R

BE-ZBESH=1—H LR

28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2009:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra 81 7% & i =

RZZE)NAE REZZBRAE
MA-H  REER REER REER ZASTR
BRATHEE 2B Bt fih AH O WA
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding
il price at during during during at
Exercisable period per share 1.4.2008 the year the year theyear  31.3.2009
()
(Note)
ZERLE-ATARE 01620855 15,000,000 - (55000000 (500,000 9,000,000
“ZRNE—RLH HKS0.1620
18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2009
“ERNFARZ—HE 025508 2,000,000 = = - 2000000
ZZ-ZENWAZTH HKS$0.2550
21st September, 2008
to 20th September, 2010
ZERNEAATAHE 020525 3,600,000 = - (2,400,000 1,200,000
ZE-FE)N\TRA HK$0.2052
16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2010
ZE-EEATARE 02052878 3,600,000 = - (2400000 1,200,000
“E-CHEARTHH HK$0.2052
16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2012
“R-REARNHE 0.1860%C 17,000,000 = - (3,100,000) 13,900,000
ZZ-CHEARZH HKS0.1860
4th June, 2010
to 3rd June, 2012
ZE-TEARNAZ 0.1860%7C 17,000,000 = - (3,100,000) 13,900,000
ZZ-WEAAZA HKS0.1860
4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2014
ZE—HEARTARE 0.2500% ¢ = 500,000 = = 500,000
ZE-ZEARTLH HK$0.2500
18th June, 2011
to 17th June, 2013
“F-EEAATARE 0.2500% 7% - 500,000 - - 500,000
ZZ-REARTEH HKS0.2500
18th June, 2013
to 17th June, 2015
58200000 1000000  (5500,000) (11,500,000) 42,200,000
12,200,000
0.1846 0.2500 0.162 0.193 0.187

Note:

certain employees during the year.

Cancellation of share options upon the termination of the employment of

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28. JEBEHEGHE () 28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

AAFBBH_Z—BE—HANH R
ZE)ENATI/VE (FHBEH) 2
B 43 53l #50.151 % I 2 0.240 % JC ©

MBEEZZNEZA=Z+—HILEE
AT 2 i B RE T S > NMTAE B 2
HE - 35 1B 15 £5.0.247 ¥ 76 > T 50 45 4 I
BE T E R B WO B R A 3530 - R
REZZE-BE=A=1+—HILFEH
IOk PR REHE AT -

MR AN H (R E ) Bt
RRRE-Z-BEZA=S+HILF
iE P45 2 i R HE 2 A P R F ¢

W T B 1 B AT B < B I A

ZER——H—ARHBE
“F—-NE—~HHH
R —"H—HAAHZE
R —HE—HHH
R -=H—HARHE
—F—-A—HHH
ZRNE—HAHZE
—ZF—t—HAH
WZZ)EANA+TIVE (BB #) B
FrERRREZFZZANE=ZA=ZT—HIL
AEJE TR R A AT

FY AT B 40 AT B 2 B A e

ZR—HFAHTAHE
SR -ZEARTEH

ZEEZHEAHTARE
—F-HEANATER

Veeko anko

e

The closing price of the Company’s shares at 6th January, 2010 and 18th June,
2008, the dates of grant, was HK$0.151 and HK$0.240, respectively.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended 31st March,
2009, the weighted average share price on the dates of exercise is HK$0.247
and the total consideration received from employees for taking up the options
amounted to HK$35. No share options were exercised during the year ended
31st March, 2010.

The fair values of the options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2010
measured at the date of grant on 6th January, 2010 were as follows:

Options exercisable during the following periods:

AFRE
Fair values

BT

HKS

6th January, 2011 to 5th January, 2014 0.04
6th January, 2012 to 5th January, 2015 0.04
6th January, 2013 to 5th January, 2016 0.05
6th January, 2014 to 5th January, 2017 0.05

The fair values of the options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2009
measured at the date of grant on 18th June, 2008 were as follows:

Options exercisable during the following periods:
A FEAE
Fair values

b:n
HK$

18th June, 2011 to 17th June, 2013 0.07

18th June, 2013 to 17th June, 2015 0.09
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following significant assumptions were used to derive the fair values using

BERAS AP 2 R - the Black-Scholes option pricing model:
o 2 2010
LR 7 6
Option exercisable from
I S | e | e e | ZF-NE-H
NAEZZ-NE NAESFNE NIEZENE NIEZE-bE
ik ik —~R1H —~R1LH
6th January, 6th January, 6th January, 6th January,
2011to 2012to 2013 to 2014 to
5th January, 5th January, 5th January, 5th January,
2014 2015 2016 2017
il B Expected life of options L3 ik N i
4 years 5 years 6 years 7 years
SR A B s W a5 Expected volatilty based on historical
ZHE volatility of share prices of the Company 56% 53% 54% 62%
AANBHEERBR Expected annual dividend yield of the Company 6% 6% 6% 6%
S I Risk-free rate 1.5% 19% 24% 24%
“EFRNE 2009
iR JBC B £ B 41
Option exercisable from
ZR—ENATAHE Z2-SEAATARE
ZR-SENATEH ZE-REAATLA
18th June, 2011 18th June, 2013
to to
17th June, 2013 17th June, 2015
L0 0 A 0 R Expected life of options fL:3 tE
5 years 7yearsffla
TR A2 ) B L W i Expected volatility based on historical volatility of share
ZEMW R prices of the Company 55% 69%
KA EHEEREE Expected annual dividend yield of the Company 6% 6%
TR B Risk-free rate 3.6% 3.6%

TEUIYT e W 79 AR 4 A A R BB O 2 g &
LA 2 B S Y A o

AEEBERARKRE F—FRE=H
S el = 8 W NN E R e g
Bz 8B % #981,0008 T (—FE I
4¢ 1 560,000 TC) ©

(A 3 — & 7 30 | 90 R S AR 5K P A
it st W M W = O S ET A o A R AR R
Z AP B IR R 2 2 T AR R T AR B
W A o BRI E T 3
LB R 2 7 7] 4 W 280 T o 5

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company'’s share price over the previous 4 to 7 years.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$981,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2010 (2009: HK$560,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to estimate the fair value
of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. B Uk A E

AL [ A AR Oy v B HC R A v R 2 W B
A E Z A K H R B R R AR &
(TR 4 ]) 5l - AR 4 5h il & A B
HEBZHABERNZEESHER - &
£ M #21,000% 70 S A B # 4 RAR Z 5%
(DABSAR 5 2 4 ) A HY 5 B 4 5t 0 3k »
M 18 B 75 28 4 W 46 Btk

A2 TR A8 2 W A R 2 B
HRABERE - EiEAFETHRAE D
AR 7 2R A e A i A AR P e A
T 4 w1 3 AR ) Fi 5T = b AR 1 A B ) A4
2 Bk o

P C 1 T B A k)
H I 1 IR A R A B AR K - HE
BAREAEBESARAFEZHET
B b 1 A7 BA R AR K o ACSR B
SRR B 2 B AT 2R AT I L

WIS B Ry > REBPNAEBREZ
MEARZSARE_TE/NENA—
HZEZRZ/)N4EXNHA =1 R
SR B RAF 3% BikE - HZR
FNELH—HE > 5HRIB K& gAY
BB HARH &2 L RHE3%K H2% - H
B 3B PR 42 42 HURY 5 ¥ SR AT (BURT 6 2 18
BIRREEFMIT) - HZFFHELA
— H M WA A A BRA —TH 2 8 TR
S HBIBAE 2 e gkt 3 (TErstsl ) -

55 AR R 4 k1) A Bk AT A 55 B R e
WAL E 2 B B> W) R 4R A kAR
B PR 5 B Bk Uk B E 2 R AR TR o
MREB AT > B TIRKERAIB E - R
FEHNEEMARKSRFAEHEZE
REBR LRSS NG LREBEHH
SHITEZ6% °
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29. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for
qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower of HK$1,000 or
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which contribution is matched
by employees.

The Company’s subsidiary operating in Singapore is required to participate
in the Central Provident Fund (“CPF") scheme. The retirement benefit costs
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represent
contributions to the CPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the CPF scheme.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to make
contributions to state retirement benefit schemes in the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of the monthly basic salaries of
the employees to the relevant schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to these pension schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

The branch of the Group’s subsidiary operating in Taiwan accrues pension cost
equivalent to three percent of employee’s basic salary for the period from 1st
April, 2008 to 30th June, 2008 in accordance with the Labor Standards Law
(“LSL"). Starting from 1st July, 2008, the rate for accrual of pension cost was
changed from three percent to two percent of employees’ basic salary. Pension
fund is deposited in the Bank of Taiwan, a custodian bank for employee pension
fund designated by the government. Effective from 1st July, 2005, the branch
adopted a defined contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the Labor
Pension Act (“LPA").

The employees who are subject to the Labor Standards Law regulations prior
to the enforcement of LPA may choose to be covered under the New Scheme
or may continue being covered under the pension scheme provided under LSL.
Under the New Scheme, LPA prescribes that the pension contribution rate by an
employer to an employee’s individual pension account per month shall not be
less than six percent of each employee’s monthly salary or wage.
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30. Connected Party Transactions and Dissolution of a

Subsidiary

On 27th July, 2006, the Group renewed the tenancy agreement with JZETi
B P B M ZE A R W T A 4L > formerly known as JEFIZER IR A 4L, an
enterprise wholly owned by JE[%€ i RZH®, the holding company of a
minority shareholder of Dong Guan Dico Fashion Company Limited (“Dong
Guan Dico”), a subsidiary of the Company, (the “Renewed Agreement”) for
leasing of factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. Pursuant to the terms
of the Renewed Agreement, the Group paid rental expenses of HK$198,000
(2009: HK$2,359,000) to HZET 2 8% ™ Z& A AR Bk I 5 4k during the year.
The Renewed Agreement expired during the year on 30th April, 2009.

The Group did not renew the Renewed Agreement as the Group terminated
the joint venture agreement entered into between the Group and JRZ&T jZ M
B RAMR AT, a minority shareholder of Dong Guan Dico, in relation to
establishment of Dong Guan Dico and the relevant supplemental joint venture
contracts and dissolved Dong Guan Dico on 15th December, 2009 upon the
completion of the necessary filings and approvals by the relevant authorities in
the PRC.

A loss on dissolution of HK$12,432,000 was recognised in the profit or loss upon
release of the translation reserve attributable to Dong Guan Dico.

31. Related Party Disclosures

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

2010 2009

T#L T#x

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 4,468 4,541
Post-employment benefits 60 60
Share-based payments 151 169
4,679 4,770

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. Events after the Reporting Period

B I BRRME

The Group had entered into sales and purchase agreements with independent
third parties to dispose of two of its investment properties located in A13 on
3rd Floor and A8 and A13 on 7th Floor, Block A, Hong Kong Industrial Centre,
489-491 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong in April and
May 2010 for considerations of approximately HK$6,900,000 and HK$14,702,000
respectively.

33. Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Information of the Company

The summarised statement of financial position information of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2010 2009

Tt R

HK$’000 HK$'000

Total assets 410,532 371,176
Total liabilities (272,191) (243,451)
Net assets 138,341 127,725
Share capital 18,449 18,449
Reserves 119,892 109,276
Total equity 138,341 127,725
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Name of subsidiary

FRFACAR A RA T
Colourmix Cosmetics Company
Limited

Colourmix Cosmetics Retail
Company Limited

R E A WA (Hitc)
Dong Guan Dico Fashion
Company Limited (note ¢)

BT T R
KEMEARAT (Hitd)

Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau Cross
Boarder Industrial Zone, Zhuhai)
Company Limited (note d)

T BE A e e e
HIRAF (Hitd)

IR
HIRAT (Hitd)

R R REA AT (Hita)
Shantou Yingko Fashion Company
Limited (note d)

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
34. A ZHE A vl aE s
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34.

ikt
LB
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

il
Hong Kong

&l
Hong Kong

i
PRC

R

PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

and 2009 were as follows:

C#HiTR
BlA,/

Ak I A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

1,000,00037C

HK$1,000,000

100,00037C
HK$100,000

18,200,000 ¢
HK$ 18,200,000

13,000,000% 7C

HK$13,000,000

20,000,000#7C
HK$20,000,000

16,600,0003 7
HK$ 16,600,000

8,000,000#7C
HK$8,000,000

the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra B 8& MiF

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

4w i
RHCEA
oAkt

g NN AL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company
(W#ta)

(note a)

2010 2009
100%  100%

100%  100%

- 75%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March, 2010

ER 23/

Principal activities
(M itb)
(note b)

bt i B B
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

bt i K2 % B
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

K BE
Manufacturing of
garments

WA

Manufacturing of
garments

AR

Manufacturing of
garments

FRA Bt B

Retailing and wholesaling
of garments

K RE
Manufacturing of
garments

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Name of subsidiary

SR R A AT (Hfitka)
Shantou Yungao Fashion Company
Limited (note d)

Veeko Advertising Agency
Company Limited

R A

Veeko Fashion Company
Limited

Veeko Fashion Far East

Company Limited

Veeko Fashion (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Veeko Holdings Limited

374
SRR
Place of

incorporation/
establishment

i
PRC

=i
Hong Kong

Hi
Hong Kong

S VR A B
British Virgin
Islands

Hmd

Singapore

S VA T B
British Virgin
Islands

BE=R RS = — IR

34.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010
34. EEME A FREN ()

B I BRRME

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BB R
BUelA,/
a8 A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

36,000,000#7C

HK$36,000,000

100% 70
HK$100

2,400,000#7C
HK$2,400,000

13570
USS$1

1,000,000 I3 ¢
SGD1,000,000

618563570
US$618.56

colourmix &

AR E i
RAECEH
JBeA kAt

A T L 1
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company
(Wiita)

(note a)

2010 2009
100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

FERH

Principal activities
(Hitb)

(note b)

A E
Manufacturing of
garments

A ok B AR A

Provision of advertising
and promotional
services

W%

Retailing of garments

TR BRERAZE
Retailing of garments
in Taiwan

WA F

Retailing of garments

BERER

Investment holding
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Name of subsidiary

BFRE S (R
M) A RA

Veeko Trading (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited

Wina Success Limited

BRBRMERAT

Ying Choi Macau Company

Limited

H

B

For the year ended 31st March, 2010
34. EEME A F RN ()

Akt
AL

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

W

Macau

wi
Hong Kong
L

Macau

a. A oy \] B ¥ ## F Veeko Holdings
Limited M HE2E » b SCHT R BT A HE

i A A R A

b. Br B EBEREB W5 AHEY
A A BEE B IR R

3 AT o

c. ArAUGEMAEAFAZERX
REME o MLUR A A 3 bk > ACSR
A0 A A oy ) A MR A o RN Y
RE30FTHR > ABER ZFFILFE
T2 A I R G b R A

WO -

d. AR F 2B WA IR G A3

2R R -

Notes:

C#HAR
BUemA,/
a8 A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

100,000 [ %
MOP100,000

100¥7C
HK$100

100,000 [ 5%
MOP100,000

the Consolidated Financial Statements %ra B 8 & M7

BE-R-RESH =4 HIEEE
Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

AR E i
RAECEL
JBeA kA

A T B 1
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company

(Wiita)

(note a)

2010 2009
100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

FEREH
Principal activities
(W itb)

(note b)

WA HH

Trading of garments

SR LS
Property holding

A E
Manufacturing of
garments

The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All other
interests shown above are indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in place of incorporation/
establishment except as otherwise stated under principal activities above.

The company is registered in the form of equity joint venture company.
Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Group is entitled to 100%
result of this company. As set out in note 30 the Group terminated the joint
venture agreement and dissolved this company on 15th December, 2009.

The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

35. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes secured
bank borrowings and obligation under a finance lease disclosed in notes 22
and 23 respectively, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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36. Financial Instruments

2010 2009
T Tt
HK$'000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 132,493 112,821
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 94,900 83,408

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
rental and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, rental deposits received, secured bank borrowings,
secured bank overdrafts and obligation under a finance lease. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (represented by currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

B I BRRME

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, purchases and secured bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, the group
entities are exposed to foreign currency risk attributable to
intra-group receivables and payables where the denomination
of the receivables and payables is in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on receivables, payables and bank borrowings
denominated in RMB, HKD, USD and EUR. The carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

j2g 3 faf

Assets Liabilities
2010 2009 2010 2009
T#x T-#T T# T-#T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
44 10 420 429
1,598 - 78,527 84,994
89 109 3,956 406

849 66

colourmix &




For the year ended 31st March, 2010
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B AN W B2 A 5% (R R
4 2 59%) I o % B BLAR
F B Al BE 25 3 B A
RERMRZEE T
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Impact on profit
for the year
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

ARWZHE
RMB impact
2010
T
HK$'000

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2009:
5%) increase and decrease in the functional currency of each
group entity against the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2009: 5%)
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes the Group’s outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, intra-group receivables and payables where the
denomination of the receivables and payables is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2009: 5%)
increase in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year where the
functional currency of each group entity strengthens 5% (2009:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2009: 5%)
weakening of functional currency of each group entities against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit, and the balances below would be
negative.

Tt
HKS'000

il Pd 2
HKD impact
2010
T
HK$'000

2009 2009
T

HK$'000

FZHE
USD impact
2010
T
HK$'000

2009
T
HK$'000

£ 97e4 7 4
EUR impact
2010
T
HK$'000

2009
T
HK$000
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

anko

e

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and obligation under a finance lease (see
notes 19 and 23 for details of these balances). The management
monitors the fair value interest rate risk exposure and considers it
as insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate short-term bank deposits, bank
overdrafts and bank borrowings (see notes 20 and 22 for
details of these balances). It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable-rate bank deposits is insignificant.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR")
arising from the Group’s HKD borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure on
ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 (2009: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 (2009: 50) basis points higher/lower
for bank overdrafts and bank borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
March, 2010 would decrease/increase by HK$255,000 (2009:
HK$261,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk on its variable-rate bank overdrafts and bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
on a collective basis at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a major source of liquidity.
Details of which are set out in note 22. As at 31st March, 2010, the Group
has available unutilised facilities of approximately HK$68,291,000 (2009:
HK$80,174,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

TR BN AR IR AT A Sk A A The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-
ZET AR Z 55 - ph R R A AR derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
R E TR AEZ RS AN the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
FIEZARITBEAMAKB SRR date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes

i o bR AEMNE RAEB
SR HMRBFIHAR K

both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

PB4 H R R B AR HI R Z F curve at the end of the reporting period.
ES T K
REZ—-%E
AiRRE ZA=+—H
Ak IR
THEF-H % Total Carrying
Weighted  —MANUA  —Z=WA =ZWAZE—% fifEP L undiscounted amount
average Less than 1-3 3 months —RTA Over5 cash at
interest rate 1month months to 1 year 1-5 years years flows 31.3.2010
HAH T T T T T T T
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-% 2010
Fefik 2 A K Non-derivative
financial liabilities
TR B AR B Trade and other payables
T a3 - 28493 3,841 - - - 32334 32334
[MGiEErE Rental deposits received = = 285 300 - - 585 585
AARMBL S Secured bank borrowings
i) - variable rate 18 1,752 46,266 3,484 10,362 - 61,864 61,030
HIARITEL Secured bank overdrafts 63 26 = = = = 26 2
R R i Obligation under a finance lease 83 27 53 239 3 - 1,062 925
30,298 50,445 4,023 11,105 - 95,871 94,900
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For the year ended 31st March, 2010 BE_R-BEZH=1—HIEEE
36. &I H (%) 36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

I B B b () Liquidity risk (Continued)
REZZNE
£RRE ZA=+—H
Wi A Z Wi
T Total Carrying
Weighted  —MANUA —Z=WA =ZWAFE—4% iYL undiscounted amount
average Less than 13 3 months —RhAE Over5 cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years years flows 31.3.2009
HAH T T T T T T T
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEB\E 2009
et LA Non-derivative
financial liabilities
JERS B 5 kR R S Trade and other payables
Tt a3 - 15,388 3,220 - - - 18,608 18,608
Elleikoere Rental deposits received - 91 81 387 501 = 1,060 1,060
R IT i B Secured bank borrowings
-8 - variable rate 24 25375 18,206 2,216 9,969 1143 56,909 56,145
HIMRGEL Secured bank overdrafts 6.1 6,472 - - - - 6,472 6,440
AL R Obligation under a finance lease 83 7 53 239 1,061 - 1,380 1,155
47,353 21,560 2,842 11,531 1143 84,429 83,408

SREEAEBABZ A FEMETTRR The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
BB SHBA M S BRMZ EMEE  accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
A E o flow analysis.

AKAFERRE > REAMBERFES L The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
HERAZ SREEREMAMBZIET  assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
A BLIC A PR fE A o financial statements approximate their fair values.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RESULTS
BE=H=1+—HILHE
Year ended 31st March,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
T T¥I0 T Tt TiT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TURNOVER 581,315 642,287 754,224 789,644 886,335
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 57,927 40,862 86,145 13,409 34,042
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)

CREDIT (8,437) (3,901) (8,219) 4,607 (4,005)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 49,490 36,961 77,926 18,016 30,037

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=H=+—H
At 31st March,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
T T F¥HL F¥I0 FiL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

TOTAL ASSETS 368,379 370,335 490,892 513,672 560,778
TOTAL LIABILITIES (75,230) (71,559) (118,487) (127,040) (138,924)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 293,149 298,776 372,405 386,632 421,854
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Summary of Investment Properties IR EYERFE

REEMP_F-FE=ZH=T—HMWMK  Particulars of the Group’s investment properties, all of which are wholly-owned,
AEEHAHBEYENFENT : at 31st March, 2010 are as follows:
W M

LYE 3 Properties Term of lease Purpose
EaRT S PN ] Portion A of 15th Floor, w3 T3
192-200%% f&Af .0 Lorry Space No. L24 Medium-term Industrial
TN SHEABRY ~ 1A ELAL on 1st Floor and Parking Spaces
L245% Be 24 B P65 5% X P68 YT No. P65 and No. P68 on 2nd Floor,

Wyler Centre Phase Il

192 - 200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong
BHWILHERWDETILE A13 on 3rd Floor and A8 and s T%
489-491 587V T3 O ARE A13 on 7th Floor, Block A, Medium-term Industrial
3MEA135E K Hong Kong Industrial Centre,
7THEAB B A135E 489 - 491 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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